MINUTES
BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING
May 4,2011 900 a.m. Room 32, Courthouse

PRESENT: Budget Committee members Mary P. Stern, Lestie Lewis, Kathy George, Michael Green,
Chris McLaran, and Shelley Halleman.

Staft: Laura Tschabold, Chuck Vesper, John Krawczyk, Becky Weaver, Silas Halloran-Steiner,
Paul Kushner, Margaret Jarmer, Keith Urban, Kim Cota, Krisan Pendleton, Lindsey
Manfrin, Craig Hinrichs, Marie McDaniel-Bellisario, and David Manitsas.

Guests: Hannah Hoffman, News-Register.

Kathy George called the meeting to order.

Election of Officers - Leslie Lewis nominated Mary P. Stern as chair and Chris McLaran as
secretary; Mike Green seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Adoption of Minutes - Kathy moved approval of the minutes from May 5-7, 2010; Chris
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Kathy moved approval of the minutes from November 30, 2010; Leslie seconded the motion.
The motion passed unanimously.

Budget Overview - John Krawczyk noted that the table in the budget message showing revenues
and expenditures is out of balance, but the numbers in the budget are correct, He reviewed the charts and
graphs in the budget binders, pointing out that most of the county’s growth has been within the cities. He
said that as the federal government looks for ways to trim the federal deficit, some of the federal
revenues to the county will be reduced, and the county is not in a position to make up the difference with
discretionary dollars. He projected little or no growth in discretionary revenue for the next two to three
years at least. The group discussed the increase in the percentage of total discretionary dollars allocated
to the criminal justice team over the years (Figure 5).

John K stated that the largest component of the county’s benefits package is medical insurance,
which has seen a significant increase over the years. He said that this will be the second year with no
cost of living increase in salaries, with the exception of the Teamsters bargaining unit.

He explained that the reason for the overall increasing trend in fund balances (Figure 7) is that
department heads are taking the issue seriously and looking for ways to save when things are difficult.

He compared Yambhill County’s budget for selected services to other counties (Figure 14),
pointing out that Yamhill County spends more than the comparable counties in the area of mental health,
which includes chemical dependency. He explained that the county has been successful in getting grants
and has also put discretionary resources into the chemical dependency programs because that has a direct
impact on the criminal justice system and reduces the number of people in jail,

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting w M
Page 1 May 4-6, 2011 LT M MS LL KGV

Mopted 5/?/!2-0




The meeting recessed at 9:55 a.m. and reconvened at 10:00 a.m.
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES TEAM

Overview of Fiscal Changes for 2011-12 - Silas Halloran-Steiner discussed the concept of
managed health care and noted the potential of losing Mid-Valley Behavioral Care Network, or at least
what it currently looks like, which could be a significant change for the second year of the biennium. He
said that the Early Learning Council, a new state agency, is included in the Governor’s Balanced Budget
for the second year of the biennium.

He stated that growth in OHP enrollment has allowed him to reduce the expected use of fund
balance, but with that growth comes the duty to serve more people, so staff is being increased
accordingly. He said that other factors that have changed the ending balance for 2010-11 have included
the increase of Adult Mental Health Initiative dollars and Children’s Wrap-Around Initiative dolHars,
PERS savings, and the elimination of a full-time assistant director position.

He reported that the combined HHS programs served a total of 6995 unduplicated clients in
2010, which is about 7% of the county’s population.

Division Review - Silas reviewed the new management structure in Public Health, stating that
3327 individuals were served in 2010, He said that he is looking at how to manage the division with
fewer state funds and noted that most of the cuts have been to the two school-based health centers. He
said that much work has gone into preparing for the possibility of providing dental services to the
indigent population, although no program is in place at this time. He said that he is looking for grants for
this program, but does not feel that general fund dollars should be used for it.

He reported that 559 unduplicated clients were served by Developmental Disabilities in 2010,
He said that this division is facing a funding level of 85%, but is seeing case load growth, so overall
revenue and staffing levels will be unchanged. He noted that a quality assurance position and the Family
Support Program were eliminated last fall.

He stated that 1665 unduplicated clients were served by Aduit Mental Health in 2010. He said
that the projections are for a 9% reduction in service elements and a 19% cut to OHP reimbursement
rates. He stated that he is adding more nurse practitioner time to this team and has budgeted for a .5 FTE
qualified medical professional position in case he gets a grant,

He said that the Abacus program served 157 people in 2010 and is also expecting a 9% reduction
in service elements and a 19% cut to OHP reimbursement rates. He stated that he has allocated about
$62,000 of fund balance to this program and feels that it is a good investment because it will help get
more people out into the workforce. He said that now that the program is essentially fully staffed, it
should be able to bill more and increase revenue. Craig Hinrichs stated that there are challenges because
of the recession, but he is still seeing success in getting people back to work, and this is also happening
across the state. ‘

Silas reported that 1189 clients were served by Family & Youth in 2010, and the division has
seen steady growth due to Healthy Kids and the Children’s Wrap-Around Initiative. He said that the
Parent-Child Interaction Therapy grant has not been lost so far, and he is adding a .5 FTE skills trainer

MINUTES Budget Committee Meeting w \}D ;
Page 2 May 4-6, 2011 | Lty mst L {UKG




position as well as a half-day of nurse practitioner time. He said that he is holding $35,000 of fund
balance to build family support advocates more formally into the support system, either internally or
through a contract with Oregon Family Support Network.

He stated that Chemical Dependency, which served 964 people in 2010, is not experiencing the
same level of cuts as the other divisions. He said that people are realizing the connection between
treating chemica! dependencies and the criminal justice system. He said that because of the reduction in
the SAMHSA grant, there is a .3 FTE position being laid off and a vacant full-time position that will not
be filled. He said that he is trying to keep the program sustainable and moving forward as best as he can.
He noted that Eusebio Herreras is being reclassified from HS Specialist 1 to HS Specialist 2.

He reviewed the shifting of duties with Paul Kushner and Margaret Jarmer in Administrative
Services. He said that 82,181 service tickets were processed by the team in 2010 and there are 120
unique contracts in place. Paul explained that the money budgeted for software is to enhance the existing
Raintree software and utilize electronic medical records, some of which is encouraged by HIPAA. Laura
suggested adding a budget footnote to explain that.

Silas stated that 118 people were served by the Enhanced Care Facility/Residential Treatment
Facility program. He said that this program is not part of the Oregon Health Plan, but a significant
amount of fund balance is going to the residential programs this year. He explained that when the rate
was first adjusted, it was higher than the actual costs, so surplus money was contributed to the fund
balance during those years. He said that costs have now climbed higher than the rates and the state will
be doing a new rate study.

Threats and Opportunities - Silas stated that the threats include the 19% reduction in OHP
funding along with higher enrollment, as well as the transformation of the health system and associated
changes to the way the county contracts and delivers services,

He said that opportunities include building health collaboratives; the possibility of mental health,
addictions, and behavioral health becoming more prominent as factors in reducing health care costs; and
an Adult Mental Health initiative that would move county residents out of the state hospital to live in the
community, which would ultimately result in cost savings, but would also bring challenges.

In response to a question from Mike G about the fund balance, Paul reviewed the portions that
are tied to federal or state grants and are thereby restricted in use. He said that only a small portion of the

fund balance is not restricted.

The meeting recessed at 11:55 am.

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting E/{i MN} Ff/UL
Page 3 May 4-6, 2011 Lr ¥ ms™ L 9%KG %



May 4,2611°  1:30 p.m. Room 32, Courthouse

PRESENT: Budget Committee members Mary P. Stern, Leslie Lewis, Kathy George, Michael Green,
Chris McLaran, and Shelley Halleman.

Staft: Laura Tschabold, Chuck Vesper, John Krawczyk, Becky Weaver, Al Westhoff, Ken
Huffer, Ted Smietana, Vieki Wood, Dan Linscheid, Mike Brandt, John Phelan, Bill
Gille, Russ Heath, and LouAnn Schenk.

Guests: Hannah Hoffman, News-Register.

The meeting reconvened at 1:32 p.m.
CULTURE & RECREATION TEAM

Fair {20-80) / Fair Event Center (20-82) - Al Westhoff stated that no changes have been made to
his budget since it was presented in April. He stated that the former Rodeo Court is now called the
Ambassador Program and it involves all of the high schools in the county. Leslie explained that because
the rodeo is so specialized, it was rare for any young ladies from Yamhill County to even apply for the
Rodeo Court, and the Fair Board wanted to have county residents representing the fair. Al noted that
both of the new ambassadors are from Dayton this year. He reported that ticket sales are going well and
he has been very fortunate in getting sponsorships. He added that he is getting ready to do a paving
project as soon as the weather permits.

In response to questions from Mike G about the sustainability of the fair and funding needs for
capital improvements, Al stated that he believes the fair should be able to pay all expenses except capital
improvements, and said he is getting very close to achieving that. He said that a well-run fair is break-
even at best. He stated that capital improvement needs vary from year to year, but $50,000 to $100,000
per year would help the county have a good facility. He said that the facility is getting to be in good
shape and its interim usage puts Yamhill County in the top five counties in the state.

Parks (10-81) - Ken Huffer stated that this is a basic budget that addresses maintenance and
operations for the 17 park properties in the system. He said that he has budgeted $100,000 as a
placeholder for grant revenue and expense, but has nothing lined up yet. He noted that Tom Genco, a
work crew supervisor, will be retiring on June 30, which will have no impact on the budget but will be a
great loss of institutional knowledge. He said that he is working on a conditional use permit for the 97~
acre Whiteson property, which would almost double the park system and could be a revenue source with
a campground. He reported that public interest is still high for the Tangleboxing program and said he
would be adding GPS coordinates to the Tangleboxing sites, as well as partnering with city and state
parks to showcase some of their sites as well.

Mike G stated that at the current run rate, the beginning balance would be higher than budgeted.

Ken explained that he is in his busy season right now and would incur a lot of expenses in the last
quarter.

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting W N\h FW/ ,.
Page 4 May 4-6, 2011 LT' MS LI 5 KG | 6/




LAND USE TEAM

Surveyor (10-21) / Corner Restoration (27-37) - Dan Linscheid stated that there are no major
changes in these budgets. He said that he is trying to be conservative in his proposed revenue and
expenses. He noted that he needs to move $2000 from 10-21-683.01 to 10-21-513.06 for one of the
AutoCAD seats. Mary said that the same change should be made in 27-37.

Dan reported that the contract services for corner restoration are still going well and the project
is over halfway completed. He said that he is working with Christian Boenisch to create a rotating list of
the local contractors so the work can be spread out among them.

The meeting recessed at 2:28 p.m. and reconvened at 2:36 p.m.

Planning (10-20) - Mike Brandt stated that part of the reason for the increase in revenue is a fee
increase recently approved by the Board of Commissioners. He said that business is picking up and his
budget is conservative, but not overly so. He stated that approximately $4000 would be added to the
budget from the A&T Grant and suggested that go into the ending balance. Mary noted that Mike B had
reduced the GIS analyst position from full-time to .8 FTE after reviewing the workload,

Solid Waste (17-28) - Mike B stated that the solid waste dollars tend to somewhat reflect what’s
going on in the economy, and they are starting to pick up.

PUBLIC WORKS TEAM (Funds 11, 41, and 45)

Motor Vehicles (11-29) - Russ Heath stated that he has increased the fuel budget to
accommodate rising prices. John Phelan stated that he is seeing some improvements as a result of efforts
to get the workers’ compensation claims under control. He said that he has decided to start an incentive
program whereby employees would receive a gift award of up to $50 value whenever a quarter is
completed with no lost-time incidents. He said that he expects to see substantial savings in workers’
compensation by the third year.

Road Fund (11-60) - John K stated that the 2011-12 federal forest funds should be increased by
$23,000. John P said that the contingency line would be increased by the same amount. He said that the
ending balance could end up being reduced by at least $248,000 if the downward trend in revenue
continues, and he would consider reducing some FTE in that case. He stated that he had accepted a bid
for the annual Maintenance Improvement Program (MIP) contract overlays. He said that the county
accepted the bid for a base list of projects plus the first alternate, but could re-evaluate the list of MIP
projects to add a second alternate project if gas tax revenue goes up. LouAnn Schenk reviewed the
personnel changes, noting two reclassifications: one Utility Worker moving to Medium Equipment
Operator, and one Medium Equipment Operator moving to Heavy Equipment Operator,

Bicycle Footpath Fund (41-30) - Bill Gille stated that no projects have been selected yet, but he
is looking for candidates. Leslie stated that they would be looking at a request for Worden Hill Road.
John P added that he has also contacted local bicycle clubs to submit project requests. He said that any
projects selected would be dene in the late fall.

Motor Vehicle Reserve (45-29) - Russ reviewed a handout showing a revised budget (Exhibit A).
John P stated that his team has worked hard since the last budget meeting with the Board to make this

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting " m/) .
Page 5 May 4-6, 2011 LT MS™ LL KG '6




budget more transparent, Mary suggested separating the pool car line into two lines: one as a reserve for
future years and one for the money expected to be spent during that fiscal year, Leslie pointed out that
any money budgeted in the reserve line could not be accessed if needed.

Mike G said that if Russ is being overly conservative in this reserve, he could reduce the rate and
free up some discretionary resources that departments could use elsewhere. Russ stated that he plans to
start replacmg vehicles sooner to bring the average mileage of the fleet down, so he will be more
aggressive in his spending starting next year. He said that the Sheriff’s Office is looking for a source of
money 1o replace the mobile data terminals in its patrol cars, and one option would be to use some of the
motor pool Feserve or reduce the Sheriff’s Office contribution for a year or so. He agreed to provide the
group with a five-year capital improvement plan showing the revenue and the vehicle replacement
schedule.

The meeting recessed at 4:20 p.m. and reconvened at 7:03 p.m.

May 4,201F  7:00 p.m. Room 32, Courthouse

PRESENT: Budget Committee members Mary P. Stern, Leslie Lewis, Kathy George, Michael Green,
Chris McLaran, and Shelley Halleman.

Staff: Laura Tschabold, Chuck Vesper, and John Krawczyk.

Guests: Mike Ragsdale, Newberg Downtown Coalition; Sandi Colvin, McMinnville Downtown
Association; Kelly McDonald and Phil Hutchinson, McMinnville Economic
Development Parmership; Bart Rierson, Newberg City Council; Ted Crawford, Mayor of
Dundee; Renee Vorm and Rod Kilcup, Your Community Mediators; Dawn Witt,
Homeward Bound Director; John J. Collins, Dayton Community Development
Association; Rick Fleming, General Manager of Petco; Antoinette Marcel, and Jay
Disbrow.

PUBLIC HEARING

Bart Rierson and Ted Crawford presented a request for $10,000 to assist in starting up the
Chehalem Paddie Launch program, which would thereafter be self-supporting. Mr. Rierson stated that
it would provide a full-time job for one employee, part-time work for high school students, and
recreational opportunities for county citizens and visitors. He said that the Chehalem Parks & Recreation
District would run the facility and has been asked to use profits to help fund the trail between Newberg
and Dundee. Mr. Crawford stated that the location in Dundee was selected because it has a slower-
flowing channel, not much boat traffic, and access to many great locations for paddling.

Sandi Colvin presented a request for $5000 for the McMinnville Downtown Association
(MDA). She said that MDA contributes to the growth of the county and brings visitors to the downtown
area, the farmers’ market, wine-tasting, and restaurants. She said that MDA has recently added
permanency to several art pieces in the downtown area, in keeping with its goal to keep the area viable

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting WD p ﬁJ ‘
Page 6 May 4-6, 2011 vt msY LLllke (1/



and Tivable. She said that she is not sure what the overall budget is, but MDA receives funding from
promotions and from the Economic Improvement District. Ms. Stern stated that she could get the budget
information the following day.

Kelly McDonald and Phil Hutchinson presented a request for $20,000 for the McMinnville
Economic Development Partnership (MEDP) and distributed a handout with additional information
about MEDP. Mr. McDonald reviewed the past accomplishments of MEDP and stated that the overall
budget is about $109,000. Mr. Hutchinson listed MEDP’s partners and discussed the new levels of
service being developed, including the addition of a VISTA volunteer position.

John J. Collins, Dayton Community Development Association (DCDA), presented a request
for $2500 to go into DCDA’s general fund, with 2 commitment to leverage the money. He said that he
anticipates the overall budget to be $5000 to $6000. He said that the organization had a very good first
year and achieved its goals for the year. He stated that revitalizing the downtown area would have an
overflow effect on the entire community, so DCDA is working on increasing the cultural and aesthetic
aspects of the downtown area.

Mike Ragsdale endorsed the Chehalem Paddle Launch project and presented a request for
$10,000 for the Newberg Downtown Coalition, which he said is looking to form a Business
Improvement District or an Economic Improvement District. He reviewed past activities and
accomplishments of the coalition and said that the goal is to portray Newberg as a destination and bring
the downtown area to people’s attention. He said that the coalition is operating on a shoestring budget of
$80,000.

Renee Vorm presented a request for $10,000 for Your Community Mediators, explaining that
the budget covers a computer, cell phone, and the director’s salary, and office space is donated by the
Mennonite Church. Rod Kilcup, Board Chair, stated that a $50 intake fee, charged for mediation
services after the first session, helps participants to be more responsible with their use of time. He noted
that the fee is waived for indigent participants. He said that the mediators do a great deal of prevention
work that keeps costs down elsewhere, so it is in the interest of the county to support the progran.

Chuck Vesper stated that Juvenile Corrections staff appreciates the work done by YCM with the Juvenile
Victim Offender Program.

Dawn Witt, director of Homeward Bound pet shelter, presented a request for $10,000 for the
Yambhill County Cat Coalition (Y3C), which she said has identified over a dozen feral cat colonies in
the county and is working to spay and neuter the cats, get them healthy, and find homes for them. She
stated that one cat roaming free for ten years can produce over 1,398,000 offspring. She said that Pet
Over-Population Prevention Advocates (POPPA) has also donated $10,000. She requested that
Commissioner Stern and Captain Ken Summers oversee the program, and stated that if the $2000 fine for
abandoning cats were enforced, it would help with the problem and provide revenue, a portion of which
could go toward educating the community to take care of the problem itself.

Rick Fleming expressed support for Y3C and presented a letter from Sharon Smith, who has been
working on the feral cat problem at the fairgrounds. He said that with the coalition now in place,

individuals are working together in the same direction.

Jay Disbrow also expressed support for the Y3C funding request. He said that cats are being

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting } /)1/ [\M[] Emﬁ/ /
Page 7 May 4-6, 2011 LT MS' LL G [g




dumped in rural areas and many of the people who have to deal with the problem are low-income
residents. He said that the City of Yamhill is considering this as a budget item for next year and is
Jooking to see if any funding is available for this year. Mary noted that Jay has held meetings in the
Yamhill-Carlton area to see if others are interested in helping.

Antoinette Marcel stated that she has tried to help animals throughout her life, and has never
seen a problem as bad as this one in Yamhill County. She said that the economy is likely a contributing
factor because people are not spaying and neutering their animals and are abandoning cats at an alarming
rate. She explained that the reason POPPA decided to help Yamhill County is that this county has one of
the biggest problems. She urged the county to support an organization that could make a difference and
make things better in the community.

Leslie stated that she would like to find a way to contribute funds to the Chehalem Paddle
Launch project and other organizations, with the amounts to be discussed during deliberations. She said

that she would also like to discuss the feral cat problem, but as a general fund expense.

The meeting recessed at 8:16 p.m.

May §,2011  9:00 a.m. Room 32, Courthouse

PRESENT: Budget Committee members Mary P. Stern, Leslie Lewis, Kathy George, Michael Green,
Chris McLaran, and Shelley Halleman,

Staff: Laura Tschabold, Chuck Vesper, John Krawczyk, Becky Weaver, Ted Smietana, Vicki
Wood, Brad Berry, Chris Osterhoudt, Tim Loewen, Scott Paasch, Lisa Hanes, Jack
Crabtree, Kellye Fetters, and Ron Huber.

Guests: Hannah Hoffman, News-Register.

The meeting reconvened at 9:02 a.m.

CRIMINAL JUSTICE TEAM

District Attorney’s Office (10-18 and 10-22) - Brad Berry stated that two of his senior lawyers
were hired away from his office last year, leaving quite a hole, but by replacing topped-out staff and
feaving some positions vacant, he has seen some personnel savings, giving him a healthy fund balance
coming into the 201 1-12 budget. He reported that misdemeanor filings are down about 2.5% from 2009
to 2010, but felony filings are up 17.5%.

He said that he is very happy with the new case management software and there are benefits to
having many other Oregon counties using the same software. He projected that his office would be
shifting to exclusively electronic discovery for defense counsel within the next month, and said that he
doesn’t expect the overall in-house cost for discovery to change, but there may be some collection
challenges at first. He said that he would Jook into options for automatic payment mechanisms that
would eliminate the need for collections.

MINUTES Budget Committee Meeting | /{)(
Page 8 May 4-6, 2011 '9 MS

wid [




He stated that one of the VOCA grants would be ending September 30, but he has enough funds
to cover it if it isn’t renewed in 2011-12 or 2012-13. He said that there is currently a bill in the
legislature that would provide for restitution specialists for pilot projects in four counties, and he would
be applying for that if it passes. He reported that negotiations are still underway with YCDDAA and
arbitration is set for June. Laura noted that, according to Diana Moffat, more and more arbitration
rulings are being made in favor of employers due to the economy.

Community Corrections (Fund 21) - Ted Smietana said that he is still waiting for news from the
state as to the total state budget and Yamhill County’s workload percentage. He said that the proposed
budget was based on an estimate of 2% of $200 million, plus Measure 57 funds. He said that despite the
significant increase in felony filings in Yamhill County, statewide crime rates are decreasing. He stated
that there is quite a bit of pending legislation, some of which would be beneficial to corrections and some
of which would result in cuts. He reported that recent legislative changes have had no negative impact
on recidivism so far, but that is based on only 1.5 years of data.

He reviewed his proposed budgets, noting that the Jail budget (21-41) has been reduced from
three positions to one. He said that in the Corrections budget (21-44), the workload has been cut by
about 40% in order to give more supervision to high-risk cases and follow best correctional practices. He
stated that he is in the early stages of negotiation with the union for the next collective bargaining
agreement.

He stated that in State Enhancement (21-45), the Byrne Grant positions would be phased out as
they reach the two-year point. He said that he plans to leave the Community Corrections Manager
position vacant due to budget hardships,

He discussed a new community service fee in Work Release (21-63) for offenders. He said that
the new software program has had tremendous results in scheduling and managing work crews, and with
the extra time and money invested in the program, it is important for offenders to contribute.

He stated that all of his budgets combined would be using about 45% of the fund balance, which
is not prudent in the first year of the biennium, so he will be considering some additional cuts after he
gets final numbers from the state. He said that it would be optimistic to expect the fund balance to last
for the next two years and it would take substantial cuts to make it last for three years.

Juvenile Department (10-74) - Tim Loewen reported that juvenile crime rates have gone down as
well, and recidivism has seen a significant drop from 37% to 30% over the last 12 years. He stated that if
it weren’t for the added workload from taking on Peer Court about two years ago, he probably would
have reduced staffing. He reviewed a handout detailing the budgeted revenue for 10-74 and 10-77
(Exhibit B) and said that he would double-check the beginning balance calculation. He explained that his
department used to make an annual transfer of about $42,000 to HHS to help cover prevention programs
and Janet Jones® position, but when she retired, the transfer was discontinued because the funds were
needed for core services.

In response to a question from Chris about the pool car line item (802.02), Tim explained that he
keeps $5000 in that line to supplement his replacement balance in the Motor Vehicle Reserve Fund. He
said that he would check with Russ about that balance because $104,000 sounds high. He said that he
generally replaces pool cars when they reach 100,000 miles. -

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting \}_/LA f .
Page 9 May 4-6, 2011 LTy msVY Lol ke }8




Juvenile Detention (10-77) - Scott Paasch discussed the community service program and the new
vocational program. He said that he plans to have the youth remodel a house in Amity to learn trade
skills, after which the house could be sold to generate revenue. He noted that he has applied for a
mentoring initiative grant that needs to be added to the budget. He said that it has been a great year for
bed rental revenue, primarily from Polk County, and that should continue into 2011-12. He said that he
would monitor the rental revenue closely and make adjustments to the budget if necessary. Mary
suggested listing the rentals separately from other contracts in order to make it easier to track revenue.

Mary stated that Your Community Mediators (YCM) has requested $10,000, and $6000 is
allocated from the Non-Departmental Fund (10-39). She suggested that, since the mediation program is
so valuable to the Juvenile Department, Tim consider what he could allocate to YCM out of his budget.
Leslie noted that, according to YCM’s budget, the Juvenile Department accounts for about 30% of
YCM’s total expenses.

The meeting recessed at 10:46 a.m. and reconvened at 10:35 a.m,

Sheriff’s Office - Jack Crabtree reviewed the accomplishments of the Sheriff’s Office, Budget
Committee, and Board of Commissioners over the past few years. He said that he continues to be
committed to not spending any more money than he has and to looking for ways to mitigate future
reductions. He said that the county has to agree on a minimum standard of services and find a way to pay
for them. He distributed handouts showing FTE details and 10-41 budget changes (Exhibit C).

He said that the budgeted figures for bed rental contracts reflect the true operational cost, and if
the contract were eliminated, the associated cost would be eliminated as well. He stated that he is having
to use funds from the jail budget in order to balance the patrol budget. He said that he would be
eliminating the GED program in the jail to save $8000 and help the fund balance. He explained that
although he can afford to stay fully staffed for now, he has to make cuts now to help mitigate cuts in
future. He said that all of the services are important, but he has to decide what is most critical, and
keeping deputies on the road to respond to emergencies is a core mission. He said that with food prices
going up and donations of food going down, he may end up outsourcing those services in order to reduce
costs, and he is making some changes in the meantime to save money.

Shelley suggested comparing the number of deputies and other staff to the average inmates per
day to get a sense over the years of whether those employees are being effectively utilized. She said that
the same comparison could be done with call volumes and staffing levels. Jack agreed, but pointed out
that there are other factors to consider besides call volume, since there is more to policing than just
answering calls, and other tasks are harder to track.

He said that he would be looking at the fee schedule in the Sheriff’s Office to see if the fees are
in line with other counties, and would continue to make any adjustments possible to get the ending
balance in 10-43 as high as possible. Mike G suggested that he re-examine his budget balance for 10-43,
which looks to be way off, and also look at Materials & Services to see if that is over-budgeted. Kellye
Fetters pointed out that there would be a lot of big expenses coming in May.

Jack stated that a long-term goal for the Courthouse Campus Security Fund (10-86) is getting the
courts to increase their contribution to the program. He reviewed the Dog Control Fund (13-47) and
provided an update on discussions with the City of Newberg about transitioning its dog control program
back to the county. Leslie stated that the issue of the county receiving part of the fee revenue needs to be
part of the conversations. Mike G suggested that the revenue and expenses for the city either be
footnoted or shown in a separate line. Leslie suggested looking at what other counties and cities do to

MINUTES Budget Committee Meeting /2/ ‘4*0%\/ ;
Page 10 May 4-6, 2011 LTJ\f )P LL(J KG[%




control the feral cat population and having a longer conversation about the issue later.

The meeting recessed at 12:25 p.m.

May §,2011  1:30 p.m. Room 32, Courthouse

PRESENT: Budget Committee members Mary P. Stern, Leslie Lewis, Kathy George, Michael Green,
Chris McLaran, and Shelley Halleman.

Staff: Laura Tschabold, Chuck Vesper, John Krawczyk, Becky Weaver, Marilyn Kennelly,
Caren Anderson, Tonya Saunders, Bridget Lavin, Brian Dunn, Doug McGillivray, Scott
Maytubby, Becky Stern Doll, Gayle Jensen, Murray Paolo, Rick Sanai, Claudia Godinez,
and Debbie Gill.

Guests: Hannah Hoffiman, News-Register.

The meeting reconvened at 1:37 p.m.

COMMUNITY SERVICES TEAM

Commission on Children & Families (CCF) (18-64) - Marilyn Kennelly reported that the state’s
general fund allocation to CCF is being cut by at least 19% and the county could be losing some federal
funding as well. She said that her proposed budget is based on the 2009-11 biennial allocation, but she
won’t know anything until the legislature is through. She stated that the biggest changes to her budget
are in staffing. She reviewed a handout detailing these changes (Exhibit D), noting that a .5 FTE
Program Coordinator position is on hold for now and isn’t reflected in the handout, but is budgeted in
contingency. She said that even in the worst-case scenario, local commissions would continue through
June 2012, with the state commission ending June 2011.

Transit (25-33) - Tonya Saunders stated that the changes in her budget are mainly due to a
change in how the transit district is reimbursing its provider contracts. She noted that the equivalent of
half of the Business Energy Tax Credit (BETC) funds has been budgeted in the fuel contingency line,
She reviewed a handout of budget changes (Exhibit E). Leslie said that payments to Abacus should be a
780 line. Laura said that she would work with Tonya on the footnotes to make sure that the STF
payments add up correctly.

Law Library (14-26) - Laura stated that Marilyn Westfall has retired and this is Bridget Lavin’s
fourth day on the job. Bridget stated that Marilyn had prepared the proposed budget before she left, and
the only difference from last year is that her salary is a little less than Marilyn’s was. She said that her
goal is to transition to more electronic materials, which would save some money in publications and
dues.

John K reviewed the budgets for Mediation Services (10-59) and County Schools (15-85).

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting M g‘w\ﬂ W’ .
Page 11 May 4-6, 2011 LT A MEY 1L KGng



GENERAL GOVERNMENT TEAM

Assessor (10-12) - Scott Maytubby stated that he is going out for two ORMAP grants per year
now, so that line has doubled. He reviewed the personnel changes, including the reclassification of Janet
Davidson from Office Specialist 2 to Senior Office Specialist and Christopher Lanegan from Appraiser 1
to Appraiser 2, He said that he may need to hire a temporary employee for a week in November during
tax collection time, He agreed to move $1000 from Other Earnings into an Extra Help line to cover that.
Laura said that she had discussed with Scott the possibility of needing to use some of his software
maintenance reserve funds for the purchase of his software, Leslie said that his budget authority should
be sufficient for that, since the purchase price is paid in increments.

Scott said that his future needs include hiring two to three new positions for the reappraisal
project, which hasn’t been done since 1996, about eight tablet PCs to enable appraisers to do data entry
in the field, and more office space. He explained that there is no room to add another appraiser with the
current office configuration. He said that technology is changing quickly, so he will wait and see what
becomes available for the tablet PCs.

Clerk (10-15, 12-15, and 40-15) - Becky Stern Doll reviewed a handout showing the decline of
document recordings over the last five years (Exhibit F) and stated that this trend has had a big impact on
her revenue. She said that the only significant change in 10-15 is personnel. She said that the office has
been struggling with the redistribution of workload since cutting two positions and an office audit is
currently underway. She said that she has budgeted an allowance for the possible reclassification of staff
and the addition of an Office Specialist 2 position, based on what the audit results show. She clarified
that she is not asking for those changes now, but wanted her budget to allow for flexibility. She said that
she may need to bring in some extra help at times as a result of a legislative bill that would put
parameters around her office’s responses to public records requests.

She said that she has been careful with her expenses and will probably end up better than
anticipated and not need to use as many reserves as expected. She said that she would continue to be
careful in spending.

She stated that the budgeted expenses in the Clerk’s Record Fund (12-15) include additional
shelving in the archival building, file space for plat maps, and more microfilm. She said that the amount
she is budgeting in Election Equipment (40-15) is consistent with what Jan Coleman, the previous
County Clerk, was putting in each year, and while the amount is small since her budget is so tight, she
wants to keep putting something in while she works on getting an idea of future needs. She said that she
needs to do more research and may adjust the amount next year.

County Counsel (10-25) - Rick Sanai reviewed the savings in his budget from previous personnel
changes and said that he has budgeted $10,000 for outside legal services from his predecessor, John
Gray, and attorneys at the Local Government Personne! Institute (LLGP1). Chuck stated that the county
counsel fee structure is being left unchanged this year while Rick tracks his hours and evaluates the fees.
Rick said that he wants the fee structure to be fair and he may end up changing it after consultation with
department heads. Becky W noted that Cove Orchard Sewer Service District should be listed as a
separate entity like the Yamhill Communications Agency (YCOM) rather than in Internal Revenue,

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting Q/f/s/ W Fﬁ’f - _.
Page 12 May 4-6, 2011 LT I MS LL KG “ /



Commissioners (10-13) - Chuck stated that this budget is relatively unchanged except that the
Budget Officer no longer has any FTE in 10-13. Laura explained that John K’s time would be budgeted
in Administrative Services.

Veterans (10-24) - Debbie Gill reviewed her budget, noting that Claudia Godinez’s position is
back to full-time. She said that she is still unsure of the state funding and has cut travel expenses. She
said that her budget had a shortfall for the first time and other departments were gracious enough to give
from their ending balances to make her whole, Mary stated that if there are shortages in this budget, the
committee needs to make that a priority.

Debbie reported that the $10,000 allocated last year by the Budget Committee for outreach was a
complete success and she has gotten a lot of positive feedback from veterans on the new office location.
She said that new client appointments have increased well above what the office had last year. She
requested future consideration of a part-time employee to help with outreach presentations. In response
to a question from Mike G about continuing the outreach funding, John K explained that a portion of the
$10,000 was used for one-time expenses such as getting set up in the new house and printing brochures.

Facilities Maintenance (40-16) ~ Brian Dunn reviewed his budget and thanked the Board for the
increase in his allocation of discretionary revenue, Chuck stated that Brian has been invaluable in the
ongoing courthouse remodel project.

Emergency Services (10-40) - Doug McGillivray said that there is little change in his budget
from last year, and he is still unsure as to what level of Emergency Management Performance Grant
funding the county will receive. He reviewed projects and accomplishments from the past year and
revised plans and policies in his office. Mike G suggested moving the money that isn’t being spent from
Emergency Expenses and Professional Expenses into a capital fund so it could accumulate over the years
and build up a reserve. Laura stated that Doug would need quick access to the money in the event of an
emergency and she doesn’t see a need to build up a reserve. Mary agreed, adding that the Board could
authorize a transfer of funds if needed.

Information Services (10-17) / Telecomm (48-14) ~ Murray Paolo reviewed his proposed budgets
(Exhibit G). He said that he has taken another look at his fund balance and believes that the projected
ending balance is accurate because there are still some planned expenditures to come before the end of
the fiscal year. He reported that the simulcast system is mostly completed and is working reliably, with
some minor fine-tuning still to be done. Kathy stated that because of Murray’s work with Oregon
Wireless Interoperability Network, Yamhill County is one of the few counties still getting a microwave
link,

Laura said that she has asked Murray to put together a S-year to 10-year county-wide strategic
plan and will be talking with him about the scope of work.

911/Dispatch (10-48) - Laura recommended that the extra $11,000 from YCOM dues be put into
Contract Services in the Administrative Services budget and used to develop a maintenance plan for the
radio system. She said that it was never the intent for the county to own the radio system, as it should be
owned by public safety users. She encouraged the Board to work with the YCOM Board to have the
YCOM Board ultimately take responsibility for maintenance of the system, with all of the users paying
into YCOM. She said that the county may need to spend some money for an outside firm to help with

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting W) 4
Page 13 May 4-6, 2011 LT A MS LLL@H KG \;%\S




developing the maintenance plan, and the $11,000 could go towards that. The committee agreed with her
recommendation,

Administrative Services (10-10) - Laura stated that the treasurer position has been absorbed into
this budget for 2011-12 with the appointment of Chuck as county treasurer. She said that the budget also
includes the addition of a full-time Human Resources Assistant and funding for John K to provide
consulting services for the next year. Chuck stated that Becky W is the deputy treasurer and all treasurer
duties related to cash receipts, tax turnover, etc., have been moved into Accounting. Becky said that staff
is working toward automating everything, so tasks that probably took Nancy Reed a couple of days can
now be done in 15 minutes with less risk for error.

Chuck said that he would be working to strengthen internal controls around the county’s
accounting system and software (called GEMS) in the coming year, as well as making the process for
bank reconciliations more efficient. He said that he wouid like to do a banking Request For Proposals
(RFP) this summer to see if the county can get more for its money and reduce the number of banks it
deals with. He said that he would also like to convene the Investment Committee this summer.

Laura stated that she has budgeted $1 for the treasurer’s salary for now, and will be fine-tuning
the responsibilities, but the Compensation Committee will need to make a recommendation for the future
treasurer’s salary, Mary pointed out that the salary will need to be set soon because candidates will be
filing to run for that position. John K said that most county treasurers in Oregon also serve as finance
officers, tax collectors, or other roles. He said the treasurer position has been made obsolete by computer
systems and the existence of the county accountant position, so the language in the statute doesn’t make
sense anymore. He said that the state’s constitution would have to be amended to change the language
and make the treasurer position optional. After further discussion, the group agreed to have the
Compensation Committee discuss the issue the following day.

INTERNAL SERVICES TEAM

Air Support (10-165) - John K said that this budget still exists because some routine maintenance
has to be performed throughout the year. He said that the county is waiting on disposition of the
helicopter and related equipment and hopes to be able to transfer it to another county.

Economic Development (26-34) - John K stated that an opportunity to help a business expand in
Yamhill County would be part of the following day’s deliberations and would have an impact on the
beginning balance of this fund if the committee decides to allocate any funding. He said that most of the
allocations to departments have been reduced by half and some have been eliminated altogether.

Mike G expressed concern about reacting to a single opportunity while continuing to
automatically fund recurring requests every year without any metrics to show that the investment has
done any good or created any jobs. Leslie stated that she would rather give the money to organizations
involved in economic development activities rather than picking a few individual businesses, since there
isn’t enough money to give to every business. She pointed out that McMinnville Economic Development
Partnership provided facts and figures on its accomplishments, and the Newberg Downtown Coalition
has a defined strategy.

Chris stated that he would like the group to come up with a definition of economic development
and then form a citizen committee to make recommendations on the allocation of funds, Mike G said

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting ﬁ( W /
Page 14 May 4-6, 2011 L’Fbi MS LI KG \f



that there are some funds reserved for this process, so the group could pick a couple of pilot projects and
test them to refine the process. He said that the process could have been in place to present to the
committee by now if he and Chris had gotten any kind of positive feedback at the last discussion in
November.

Maintenance Reserve (40-83) - John K explained that this money is set aside for maintenance
and replacement of the county’s postage machine and the facilities that house it. In response to a
question from Kathy, he said that the money could be used for asbestos removal in that area of the
courthouse.

The meeting recessed at 5:13 p.m.

May 6,2611  10:00 a.m. : Room 32, Courthouse

PRESENT: Budget Committee members Mary P. Stern, Leslie Lewis, Kathy George, Michael Green,
Chris McLaran, and Shelley Halleman,

Staff: Laura Tschabold, Chuck Vesper, John Krawczyk, Becky Weaver, John Phelan, Russ
Heath, Silas Halloran-Steiner, Paul Kushner, Jack Crabtree, Ken Summers, Ron Huber,
Kellye Fetters, Tim Loewen, Scott Maytubby, and Murray Paolo.

Guests! Hannah Hoffman, News-Register.

The meeting reconvened at 10:15 a.m.
DELIBERATIONS

Laura distributed copies of the housekeeping items and deliberation list (Exhibit H), noting that
the list of housekeeping items needs to be amended to include the correction of the surveyor’s salary if
necessary to keep the total status quo, as pointed out by Leslie during the Compensation Committee
meetling.

Kathy requested that the deliberation list be amended to include the use of postage machine
reserve funds for the asbestos project. Mary requested a discussion about looking into a county-wide
workers comp safety incentive program, based on the model used by Public Works. She also suggested
that the Budget Committee schedule tours of the entire campus.

1) Compensation Committee Recommendations - Mike moved to leave the salaries for elected
officials at status quo with the following exceptions:
a. Increase the sheriff’s salary as needed to meet statutory requirements;
b. Set the treasurer’s salary at §1 for now, with future salary to be decided separately;
¢. Decision on clerk’s salary to be deferred to a later time.
Chris seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

2) Treasurer/Clerk Salaries - Laura recommended setting another meeting for this discussion in

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting VX p\b a% ;
Page 15 May 4-6, 2011 LT " MS LLr‘@? KG_ | UK
7 Ly,




order to allow her and Chuck to prepare a list of key functions of the treasurer for the committee’s
consideration, Mary emphasized the importance of moving forward on the treasurer position because of
the election next May. She said that the treasurer’s duties need to be clearly defined and a salary set well
before the filing deadline. The group agreed to check their calendars and set a date for the meeting
during the lunch break.

3) 1S Adjustments - Laura explained that she included this on the deliberation list because it adds
money to the budget for software license and support. Leslie moved approval of the adjustments; Mike
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

4) Public Works (11-60) - Adjust amount for federal forest funds - L.eslie moved approval of the
changes; the motion was seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

5} Juvenile Detention (10-77) - Add $80,000 to beginning balance - Tim stated that the Board
had approved the Amity House Project to bill against some detention reserves in 10-77, and he
anticipates using some of that in the current fiscal year. Shelley moved approval of increasing the 10-77
beginning balance by $80,000; Kathy seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

11) Juvenile Detention contribution fo YCM - Mary said that the committee had talked about
Tim making a contribution to Your Community Mediators, but Chuck is concerned about that coming out
of this budget and suggested that it come out of 10-39 instead. Chuck explained that he is concerned
about setting a precedent for paying for a volunteer service. Leslie said that some additional funding was
found after putting the budget instructions together, so she would agree with taking the entire YCM
allocation out of 10-39.

6) Planning - Add A&T Grant revenue of $4345 - Kathy moved to add the grant revenue and
increase the ending balance by the same amount; Leslie seconded the motion. The motion passed
unanimously.

7) HHS general fund - Silas reviewed a handout showing the HHS fund balance detail (Exhibit
1). He said that it is important to keep some flexible funds in the fund balance. John K raised the
possibility of using some HHS funds to set up a program to deal with the feral cat problem, since it is a
public health issue. Silas said that, generally speaking, when the Board has wanted to start a new
program, it has been generous in providing money to seed the program or provide a local grant match.
Mary expressed doubt that the feral cat issue would fit into the parameters for public health funding.
Leslie suggested that the county take a broader look at the issue and see if the data that has been
presented is accurate, and if so, why Yamhill County’s problem is worse than most other counties’. The
group agreed to table the issue and study it further,

Leslie asked if, given the substantial fund balance in HHS, Silas could absorb the proposed
$25,000 cut from the Sheriff’s Office and still continue its mental health program in the jail. Silas said
that he could do that in the short term to help out, but he would be concerned about using fund balance
for long-term ongoing operations. He added that it would be better to keep the expense in the jail budget
so that it reflects the true cost of operating the jail. Mary agreed. Leslie stated that the sheriff has
increased his use of mental health professionals because of the Board’s joint initiative to do so, and the
Board should look at reallocating some general fund dollars to cover that. She suggested taking $25,000
from the HHS general fund allocation and giving it to the jail, which would mean Silas would probably

MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting f\/ M‘D rw/
Page 16 May 4-6, 2011 Lty MsM L g KG\%




have to draw down $25,000 from his fund balance for 2011-12. Paul suggested that a one-time transfer
of funds be made for now, and that the Board consider a long-term adjustment next year if necessary
after seeing what cuts are made on both sides by the state.

John K stated that the bigger problem is that at some point in the future, given the current
staffing levels and trends, the criminal justice team will consume all of the county’s discretionary
resources. He said that the county will either have to develop new revenue sources or reduce services.
Mike said that now is the time for a serious discussion to take place about the criminal justice system,
and the only prudent way to deal with the issue is through staff reduction. Mary stated that the sheriff
has asked for that discussion and the group needs to sit down after this budget process and discuss the
issue. She said that the Evidence-Based Decision Making Initiative will hopefully lead to reduced costs
across the criminal justice team, but the county needs to be as cost-effective as possible with the dollars
it’s spending.

8) Motor Vehicle Reserve Fund - Russ reviewed three handouts with details about the county’s
motor pool vehicles. He noted that in addition to mileage, the age of a vehicle is also a factor to consider
for replacement. He said that he just got a new software module that will help with fleet management
and allow him to provide reports for the committee. After further discussion, Mike suggested taking a
look at the mileage charge during the first quarter and considering a possible reduction for next year’s
budget, but making no change now.

9) Transit - Add Jobs & Transportation Act (JTA) carrvover revenue/expenses - Leslie moved to
direct Laura and Chuck to work with Tonya to make the appropriate changes; Mike seconded the motion.
The motion passed unanimously.

The meeting recessed at 12:03 p.m. and reconvened at 12:42 p.m,

12) Jail request to reduce transfer to HHS and GED programs - Leslie said that she understands
the need for the records clerk position in the jail, but with the tight financial situation and Teamsters
employees getting a 6% increase in compensation, she isn’t sure that the county can afford to add another
employee, especially with an ending fund balance of $330 in the jail. Jack explained that in order to
reduce the number of patrol deputies, he needs to have a less expensive employee doing some of that
work. He said that he expects his ending fund balance to be higher than $330 because of management
decisions and reductions in spending. Ken Summers said that the clerk position could be budgeted in
either 10-41 or 10-43 since many of the tasks cross over divisions, but the Jail Records Division is open
longer hours and there would be more time to do the clerical work.

Leslie recommended holding off on the records clerk position for now and doing a more in-depth
analysis before June as to whether or not it is really needed. Jack stated that he is looking at the jail
budget to see if there are other adjustments that could be made to cover the cost of the new position.

He stated that his 2011-12 budgets are balanced and it would be a good strategy to process those
balanced budgets and then discuss what reductions to make next year to mitigate losses. He said that he
plans to reduce his patrol division by about 14% by not filling two positions, for a savings of about
$179,658, and then he would only need to cut 1.5 positions next year. Shelley stated that she has a hard
time cutting deputies when the employees are getting a 6% salary increase. Jack agreed, but said that he
has to abide by the contract,

MINUTES Budget Committee Meeting Q /, 1/ \B P@M-
Page 17 May 4-6, 2011 Lt U msi Ll ke /6




After further discussion, Mary moved approval of the request to reduce the transfer to HHS and
GED programs, with the Board to discuss other funding for the mental health services. She also moved
to reduce the rural deputies and associated funding in the budget by 2 FTE, with Kellye to provide the
doilar amount. Mike seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

13) Dispatch - Move $11.487 to Admin Services for Radio System Maintenance Plan

development and ongoing maintenance assistance - Leslie moved approval of the budget change; Kathy
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

14) Video Lottery (Economic Development) - Leslie moved to allocate $5000 to the Newberg
Downtown Coalition, explaining that the coalition would have a positive impact on jobs in the Newberg
downtown area and the county hasn’t done much for the Newberg area in terms of economic
development. She also moved to allocate $5000 for McMinnville Downtown Association, $10,000 for
the Chehalem Paddle Launch project, and $2500 for the Dayton Community Development
Association. Kathy seconded the motion. Mike and Chris emphasized the need for more information in
the future about what the organizations plan to do with the money, as well as a way to measure the return
on the county’s investment. The motion passed unanimously.

Mary suggested that Chris head up an Economic Development Task Force that would make
recommendations on how the county should spend its video lottery dollars. Leslie agreed, with the
caveat that the Board should share its ideas and interests with Chris before he gets started on the task
force. Mary’s suggestion was approved by consensus. Chris stated that he would like all video lottery
dollars to be appropriated to economic development. Leslie said that the remaining allocations to non-
economic development functions have been reduced by half this year and would be eliminated next year.

Leslie moved to transfer $4000 from the ending balance of 10-02 to 10-39-720.14 to bring the
total contribution to Your Community Mediators to $10,000; Mike seconded the motion. The motion
passed unanimously. Mary said that when the money is sent, it will be made clear that the Board expects
to see a-show of income from the fees YCM is now charging.

Water Master: The group agreed to table the $5000 request and talk about it in two weeks.
Mike noted that if the program is important, somebody other than the county could provide funding.

Postage Reserve Fund: John K stated that the asbestos costs for the portion of the courthouse
that houses the postage machine can be taken from this fund. He requested that he be provided the total
square footage and the cost per square foot.

Approval of budget and tax rate - Kathy moved to approve the budget as amended and set the tax
rate at $2.5775 per thousand dollars assessed value; Mike seconded the motion. The motion passed
unanimously,

Mary stated that she would call the Budget Committee together for the allocation of discretionary
dollars next year, since the commiitee should be a part of that. The meeting adjourned at 1:50 p.m.

Prepared by Anne Britt

i

\UNTY BUDGET COMMITTEE
ba
"' 3 f:.,—.?;,l/
cretary

B \‘

RVARV
MINUTES  Budget Committee Meeting W ﬁmu |
Page 18 May 4-6, 2011 LT MSWLLC{; KG“%‘




00°000°6Z

00°000°08
00°898

00'008°L
00°000°L
00°059
00°000°S
00°000°SZ
00°05L
811296212
00'sZ¥'Ze)
007004568
00°000°¢S
o0'Lze’lL
00'6.6°6%
00'giLi0ze
00°005°2
00°000'6Z
007005°ZE

00°009°}
00'00¢

00°c9L'8¥L
607521862

016788z 1L )

O o O O R O & & & &

Lo

“r o & & 8 & H

] H e

0¢ HOISIof

00°899
00°008°L
007000}
007059
00°000°G
00°000°52
00052
08'578Z6L'Z
00°52Y'Z2)
00°002°6¢
00°000°SE
00°19¢°L
00°5.6'67
00°5S6°672
000052
00°000°5Z
00°000°0Z

00°009°L
00°00¢

LL298'662
60°592'96¢

00" PEP B50°L

$

FOEVHD HOAHD TVNANVIN

133114 62-51 OL Qivd Suivd=y SONVHNSNI 4738

$ JOVINVA ALY3dOud NOISITIOD TYNHILNI
‘LT SuvE LHOIM STTIIHAA L3374 ANV SHYD 10HLYd L4100

G R R B R 3

“r

$
$

100d JOLOW

Qv3HUIAC NINGY

INTH INIWLINDT
DNISILIIAQY

ASNALXT TTAAVEL

Liany

IADVINVE ALH3d0Hd NOISITIOD
LNINGINDI 1430

DS

HAUASTY Md dTASNVHL "IN
00d Y0101 NOH- FTIN H3d SINSD £0°

FONYHENASNI NOISITTOD LNI

100d HOLON WOH- TN ¥3d SINZD §'1 "M'd WO 00°000°L1

$
$
$

1sn FAY3STY LIFr0Hd LN
LSTFHELINI NvOT
Me O1 NVOT ONMAHELNE

SITDIHIA 100d WOH- SN Hd 617 ANV "AV'd NOH £88'¥ZL
$ (LNIWIOVIdTY) LNIVIN 1DIHIA TYNYLNI

L= & & & Lo el

$
i3oang

0Z UOISIDA

SIIONIDV IAISLNO WOXS SNOILOFTIOD L8N

18N IAGASTY L03AM0Hd
Hd/dINDA WSMVLINIY
1SIALNI 100d

123N OlavH

NIV FTOIHEA

JONVHNSNI NOISITIOD

A0VI4IY ONIATING "Wd GNV HIAYHO
"MUd EIAYESEY g8

INTWEDY IdTH MNYL TENE GNNROUDUAANN
18N d3andasIy 38

SHYD 1004 ONY ZONVAINSNI NOISITIOO
SONYIVE DNINNIDEY

60°08.-620-5%0
80°08.-620-5%0

50°08.-620-5¥0
£0°082-620-9¥%0
20'259-6205¥0
L0 0V9-620-570
L0-0£9-620-5%0
10°119-620-5%0
D1°0L9-620-570
LO'EFS-620-5970
66°G15-620-G¥0

ANNIAZY TVLOL

15°08¢-620-5¥0
1" 08E-620-G70
£¥'08¢-620-510
0Z'082-620-9¥0
6L08E-620-970
11°08€-620-970
£P'C9E-620-970
20°29¢-620-510
L0°19E-620-5¥%0

L1 6ve-620-5v0
Py 9yL-620-570

89°L02-620-5¥%C
ZO'LOC-6E0-5Y0

107 L0E-620-570

Bt A V2



81°650°020C
211296412
60°¢1Z'vOY
00°385°0.L
60°6z9'cee
01L'9¥8'999°L
0L"9v9'eor’L
00°002°202

00°895'601

&% &

00'978°26LC
60"051°999
00°989°vES
60°59L°Lee
£6°228°'L67"L
00 LYY ELY’ L
£6'98¢°8L

00°895vE

$ STUNLIONIE TVLOL
$ 666-006 H04 TV1O1
SNOLLYTYIRNDOY JAMASTY DNIGTING Md
$ Md IAITSTY 90°066-620-G¥0
SNOLLYININNDOV ININADY I3 1SN
$ 18N FUNind ¥od IANUEsSEY $0'066-6208¥0
$ JONYTYd JAASHY d3101d1SE 0°066-620-5¥%0
$ HAINVIVE ONIANT 10°066-620-570
$ IVLIdYD "H04 V10l
LNINAINDI ANV SHDIHIA LNIFNFADY 1438 ISYHIUN .
$ SHV3 100d Z0'208-620-5%0
SNOLLYTYWNOOY LNIWIOV T ¥3avES :
$ ANZININDI "M'd 18'008-620-5%0

o W

ININAY DN "TYNHELNI OO

SHOIAYIS/IVIMILYIN TYL0L
#£'084-620-5F0

E~;!/w\;~’r a2z



2011-12 Juvenile Revenue Detall

10-74 10.77

jéwgm—Basic

JCP-Prevention* 63,838
OYA-Diversion 140,260
OYA-Individual Services 8,786

Total State Health Grant 213,015 0

B

8 SUpensn/PishaibnEess 2
Probation Supervision Fees
Juvenile Violations Court Fees

Community Service Crew Fees 3,000
Detention Use Fees 3,750
Functional Family Therapy Feas 2,500
Legal Document Fees 300
Urinalysis Fees 750
Total Supervision/Probation Fees 19,800 6,750

Detention aé;%d Sales 195,055
QYA Rent 9.000
OYCC/Surmmer Job Program 11,111
Peer Court Fees 10,000

McMinnvilie PD - Peer Court 22,000
Newberg-Dundee PD - Peer Court 17,000

Total Local Contracts 58,000 206,166

E e

| 8B0 s Doty IEmarContiacER : .
DDA-Dependency Contract 25,815
Total County Internal Contract Revenue 25,815
Totals 376,111 391,759

E%W%ﬂb{ﬁ Ig %fﬁ



LLOZVIS

Fe i3

Exludy

Y]
i o0 108ed 8 a1y 0} peIeo0|[ESY G AlNd=a Z0v0P-2#0-0L0
3 Gl joned WoI{ Z°
i 7Sl mun bog g Cr-pl ohed & stey 0} pejeoojieay o INY3IOH3S 80°L0F-¢#0-0L0
josed wead ¢ :
ANV
0£°8¢ 7'Ge :
_Umnn< __\..m. ooe 8l £ JSHNN SiD3 80°90F-1¥0-0L0
00'¢ 4 HOZL G L 0y-1v0-010
pPEbpRY L+ {00°C Z MHIN0 SAHCOFd HS L0y L 70-0L0
\T i v Ll Wokd . psppyY g+ (0002 gl AlNd=aa uvr B80%0¥-L¥0-0L0
S|[B303 20§ "Ly~ LT pUnd
fluthindep | 11ppy
ooe Z T2 SEH0DIH SOvOP-1¥0-010
00¢ Z 000 e LO¥OV-110-010
0ot b NIVLdVD L2 10v-1P0-010
0ol V HOSIAHEANS AVHOOHd GZ LOV-LP0-0l0
] 08701 998 10 T oeg| peledojjesy | Lik08Y g LNVIOHES L' 10v-iv0-010
1D 0} 248y Wodj kN
3 £¥-01 10484 & 0S0 S0 44143HS PO 00-1¥0-010
sjenbs AlCE AlgE uoomIng Hdg 207 E} pasnpay |+ L4 1344 vr
uoneoojje |usamiag wds puz  [UOIISOY ZL-L1L0Z LL0Z O3 L1L-0L0Z] /Peledd|esy c¢l-i10e 111-0102
Al + WIS UoRISOg 21-L 10T /PRPPY i

UOESIAIG J18U10 Ui 8); uoisod §i ussis) ‘pasodosd Z1-1 LOZ O3 | 1-010Z wodj 8l ul ssbueyo =pay

s31d Zi-Li02




LLOCH/S

>
>

2/
e
SY'E STE
002 Z_ HID1440 THINS D0d LO0¥0r-4F0-EL0
00’4 L MHT1D SaHOITY SO POr-LY0-ELO
L £-0L l0KEd G Zh-0l BulEn ¢ asey| pereoojesd| . 0Z°0 0 I ELRES 80'LOY-/F0-EL0
0} joned woid Z- e
l lEp01 joded G40 e i inieTo G20 NIV Ld¥D 12 107-LV0-ELO
TOMLNOD D00
0z'L !
00’k 3 ALNd3d SNOILOIHHOD 60 F07-980-0L0
} oL rerg ajayl  psiedolesyl T 10Z0 0 INVIDYES SNOILOIHHOD 71'107-980-010
0} jler wiodd Z°
ALRINDIS 1¥NOD
SOy sz’ Ly _ o
050 S0 HO31 dIAT ALYIdO¥d 91 '¥0-£40-0L0
_ paonpayfi- |00t Zz Y10 STHOOTY '¥S ¥ ¥Ob-E¥0-0LO
00} L¥0-3A110313d 80 PO~£¥0-0L0
00'€ 4 EINTBETEL 80 FOF-E¥0-0LO
m peppyis+ |00€ 4 MUITO SAHOOTY S0 FOP-£¥0-0L0
00'L L ALNd3A TIAID #0'POP-£4#0-01L0
Tzv-01 euuen z- SULIBIN paleoolead] . .108'ST 8z auuepy bupuned ‘sepndap Z0P0v-€¥0-010
Q) aley wodd 7 ; 9Z 2101 {20 G L =[Biny/I0BIUOD
86°0} =euliep
ulrz wﬂma hmtmﬁ DEIIIOD
i 82°01) 44I43HS ALNd3d
00'L ! YO0 1HOddNS NINaY 80'Z0V-€£0-010
T Iv-ey AuD Bog Sz . |sro L0 NIV.LdVD L2 LOV-E70-0L0
00} INIDA -LNVIDUIS| LOAS 80 LOV-S#0-0L0
S gL pud bog zo [zy-0l suleN ¢ (z)Boq| PpeiROOlESM)  |0ST 9 LNIDA 'sbog ‘suneny 80°LOF-€¥0-0L0
9 (¢') sunep L Bupunoo ‘s16s g 1e101 (JBuny
0] 2i9Y W04 g 2 'LINIDA | ‘Wib-oenuoog
H.Emum SULBIN € wEQ
‘2Joy 0BAUOD §7) INVIDHIS
00'L l 181vID3dS 301440 NINayY Z0'LOv-€70-010
I | {17-0L 1er g 1080 S0 44I43HS ¥0°00p-£¥0-010
I0MLYd]

SAiATE-LL0E




Currently What budget
Acct number Desc. In Budget|  Add/Subtract should be
}_%41—482.00 Extra Help 25,000.00 -8,000.00 17,000.00
10-41-890.01 Ending Balance 330.00 8,000.00 8,330.00
0.00
Elimate GED Program
10-41-780.52 tnternal Transfer to HHS 51,277.00 -25,639.00 25,638.00
10-41-990.01 Ending Balance 8,330.00 25,639.00 33,969.00
0.001 .
Reduce Mental Health Sves Contract
Fund 10-41 net change 33,689.00

PMNAMDSUP\YCSO Budget\2011-2012 budget\May changes to 2011-12 budget

E)dml?t‘{' C Bi/é

5/4/2011/15:37



0 0sb s b unpuoy

Eﬁluin'ﬂ' D ﬂ/ﬁ

BYSES pancsdde uaym 1ojeuipsco?) wesdoid 03 08 oy

£E5£8 TB/PLE 1507 IOl
08z 9€ 4 3AIBSaY 9507 S| 0% ¥65-¥90-810
08z 9 T wsushodwaun 00°56%-¢90-8T0
80T a4 8 UBLWSS3SSY do) SIBISM 00967-7I0-BE0
295 7L 06t o) S1I0M/BOURINSY] TUBPLODY P&7-4I0-8T0
orze oL 0252 vEIA STE6F-P90-810
8 6T ] aIuRINSUE DY OF €67 790-8T0
9Z9¢ 8Z0t 865€ [B3BG 0T E67-90-8T0
6£99E [A 48] LEYST [E21pai OT'E6-7I0-810
68ET 19 2707 asuelnsut Azljtgestg T0°T64-7I0-8T0
SI5L 885 L16% RWAINAY 00 Z60-vI0-810
048 furans 9854 Anoag jenos 00°T65-790-810
1507 79T SLLT aleaipay 00067 I0-210
3149 PPY 95081 99081 0 UoBL ISHED3AS B0 -p90-310

0 BESY- 885P Lol
[ y6L- v6L aJukleg ZutiEag 1NDD TOTOE-#90-810
0 vEZZ- v67T SINOH 2113 ANOD 00°086-b30-8T0
477 03 19JSUELE DAOWIDY 188pNg 209
0 0057~ 00ST SHUSASY BB 00 ANOD T0°08-v90-810
SINOH ABRYIEg onoltisy
ZE0S 0002 2500 T 15ije2ads 0110 T0°720-030-810

15015 ZhhEs- E6UYTT TWLOL
¥z 18- 23 3/BSAY 507 AL 08°v6%-v90-810
e 18 §Z¢ juswiAojdwaun 00°S60-r90-810
I8 Qm. FANA JUBLUSSESsSY QEOU m.mwuto\s 80 961-1799-810
06k 18T 155 QEOU m._mv_._o_g\wu:m._amc_ plit=Toiwal-) PE-FO0-RIG
0ZsT 096~ 08ye YHEA STE6F-HIC-BTC
59 sz- 08 aaueInsy| 3§ Ob E6b-030-810
865¢ 0LET- 8367 je3ueq 07 £6b-790-810
16T 95801- £9E6E {E2PBIN OT'E67-790-8T0
8201 999~ w651 Soueinsy| ARIgesIq TEE6V90-810
£16¥ 96L%- £1L0T 1wBWRIY 00°Z67-90-810
9854 6652 58001 A1pinoag [eR0s 0 T6-HIC-8T0
SLLT 985~ BSEZ 34e3P3IN 0006-90-8T0
0 57 ¥Z7 Aunaguon 00 SLY-OU-810
313 g /WY O 60E0L- 60E0Y JOIRSINILPY IO 9L TOrTO0-810
wm\.’\w.l*lm; m mw G i UGS 5, UDIE]) SAERDY

vijddkg - Qb
§£\ u _ wm\u Om w O m. T N Y a3p SnUINE/SnLd 153png BiIn) Lu3} aun N0y
7 SpA Ut

g o’ € # TT0Z/8T/Y

- spoihuermeH pL ee U
244 U4o AU I

Z1-TT SHONVHD 1303ng



Proposed Changes to FY 11-12 Tranéit Budget

Current Proposed
REVENUE- _
025-033-331.33 Federal Transportation $567,132 $713,844

ITA 146,712

EXPENSE-
025-033-543.01 Department Equipment $123,503
025-033-611.02 Contract Services $ 35,892
025-033-950.01 Contingency needs to be reduced by $12,683 to cover match expense

Capital items to be purchased with JTA funds include — On-board Security Cameras, Surveillance
Security Cameras, Waste Basket and Schedule Holders for Passenger Waiting Shelters, Bus
Wraps, Transit Center Study.

E‘ﬁ(l\«b[)t % E l/’



Ednb k- F A

3 F A4 gze'se 620'62 obi'oe 1 AN A vigos #8262 26€'v2Z 1zv'81 £55'81 Fad:1 {ejol
00E'L 828'1L 162’2 Lov'e 620°2 b2g'e 9ZV'e 118} 69¢'L 959't 2091 %8
gzo'e GG6'1L GOZ'T S¥ee £02' ZEL'Z BEEE Log'L 09t gie'l ¥e¥'L AON
286°1 86L'z gege 0£8°C 290°2 2e'e ZGE'C 2ZL'T 0Lt'L 8zl Zog'} 0o
965'L erL'l 886'tL 816°¢ §z20'2 [AAKA PPe'e F6'L 969'L Z2e9'L 0681 deg
PrLL yeL'e GYB'L £00°¢ aie'e 808'Z £29'C £85'Z viG'L 029’y LE9°L Bny
£28'L oYs8'e geg'e zZov'e ¥59°¢ 229 1182 Te8'T 0202 GBE'Z 8102 Anp
€012 988'L 648'2 gey'z rAS =i P85 L6E'E 678l 066'L e6Y'L aunp
586') 1002 ¥EL'T ¥eTe 79€°C 169'2 8552 £68'L Gi4'L eyl Re
GEB'L 99L'e 90.'C [1)8 4 0ZE'T £8E'Z FAN A ¥26°% 808'} 80¢€'1 802"l ddy
008'L 65T 925'z (AL A LO¥2 G1LT 6L¥°C 650'2 z6LL 6151 69%°L ley
oEP'L £68'L 92e'e 918l 9.0'C goe'e 8512 698} 9zr'L BEZ'L Z6E°L qo4
L8E"L Zye'e £06"¢2 yeL'L 08L'z Lotz 815z 204° LZEL rov'l £05°Y uep

LOOZ/000Z Z0OZ/L00Z €002/Z00Z  v00Z/200Z 500Z/¥002 9002/6002 1002/9002 800Z/L00Z 6002/8002  0L0Z/6002 [30Z/0L0C

Bo Buipiodsy JuaWIN20(g

349l Aunodg |iywep



Budget Committee Overview
IS and Telecomm Departmenis
FY 2011/12

Information Systems, 010-017:

- Revenue: Network charges increased by 2%. City of McMinnville
revenue will increase by 2%. The communications tower revenue is
being shifted to the YCOM budget.

- Personnel: Nancy Keim is retiring this year in September. She’d like to
continue to work fwo days a week for about three years. Plan is to see if
we can hire someone to fill the other three days per week. Overlap
would be good. The budget reflecis a full-time position in the event that
we car’t find someone who will work the three day a week schedule.
Good transition plan.

- Expenses: Reflect that we no longer have a contract employee. Also,
reflect that with some turnover, we will likely have increased training
and travel costs.

- Capital: Servers, expansion of SQL server system, network wide
version controf and maintenance software.

- Initiatives: Continuity of operations, increased security and update of
server hardware and software, expansion of virtual machine technology
(and internal cloud computing), working closely with the Assessor’s
office on their software project, and supporting the EBDM initiative with
the public safety feam. Mobile computing and access via wireless
devices. RADIO PROJECT, which is not reflected in this budget.

Computer Replacement, 040-017:
- $350 per PIC, consistent for several years.
- Used for targeted 3 — 5§ year roli out of Desktop Platforms.
- This is a tremendous program, and has resuited in a substantial
reduction in the need for support of aging equipment.

Telecomm, 048-014:

- Revenue: No change in phone charges. Slight increase in BFB due to
the reserve for the new phone system building.

- Personnel: No changes.

- Expenses: No significant changes.

- Capital: Anticipation of a major purchase in the coming fiscal year.

- Initiatives: New technology, (Voice over IP), we continue to explore what
our afternatives are and anticipate the work on either an RFl or RFP in
the coming months.

Exbd & 1/



Yambhill County Budget Committee Meeting
May 5, 2011

Siaff Housekeeping ltems

1. HHS changes to FTE add footnote to 16-79
2. Surveyor and Corner Restoration Changes
3. Road Budget ~ Beginning Balance Footnotes
4, 11-29; 11-55 - Move amount in Employee Recognition to Workers Comp Incentive. -
5. Add footnote to 11-60-610.01
6. 45-29 - see handout
a. Discuss Capital Improvement program for 5 year plan during deliberations
Community Corrections — FTE changes for Community Services Supervisor ~ reduce to .50 FTE
8. Add footnotes to Juvenile Probation and Detention — see handout and notes
9. lJuvenile Detention — Create new line for Bed Rentals; separate line for Local Contracts
10. Dog Control —footnote dog license fee split with Newberg/Dundee; Kellye to provide language
11. Make Transit corrections and correct footnotes .
12. County School fund change :
13. Add Exira Help to Assessor Budget; 51,000 from Other Earnings
14, County Counse| — fix FTE .
15. County Counsel - add line for Cove Orchard {$2,900)
16. Emergency Management — fix FTE

™

Pt it 12



Yamhill County Budget Commitiee Meeting
May 5, 2011
Deiiberation List

1. Compensation Committee Recommendations

2: Treasurer Discussion /Clevic

information Systems: 040-017-683.07 change amount to $86,500 (increase of $15,000); 010-
017-990.01 change amount to $268,808 (decrease of $15,000)

4. 11-60~- Increase 332.02 to $176,000; add balance o contingency

5. luvenile Detention — Add 580,000 — see handaut

6. Planning —add A & T Grant Revenue of $4,345 — put balance in Ending Fund Balance

7

8

9

w

HHS General Fund Discussion
Motor Vehicle Fund Capital Improvement Fund Discussion
Transit - Add JTA Carryover/Revenue — amount $7?
10. Juvenile Department Beginning Balances review
11. Juvenile Detention contribution to Your Community Mediators
12. Discuss Jail request to reduce transfer to HHS and GED Programs
13, Dispatch; Move $11,487 to Admin Services for Radio System Maintenance Plan development
and ongoing maintenance assistance
14. Video Lottery {Economic Development) Discussion

Final Action: Budget Approval and set tax rate

Exbd {22



ADMINISTRATION -

_ ADULT PROGRAMS

PUBLIC HEALTH PROGRAMS
FAMILY AND YOUTH PROGRAMS
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT
ADMINISTRATION _
627 N.B. Evans  McMinnville, OR 97128 ~ Phome 503434-7523 - Fax 503-434.9846 - TTY 1-800-733.2900

May 6, 2011

To:  Budget Committée
From: Silas Halloran-Steiner
CC:  Paul Kushner

Re: Budget Committee Request for HHS Fund Balance Detail

The Budget Committee asked a guestion about the HHS dedicated versus flexible fund balance. On the
spreadsheet below you will see a detailed summary of our entire fund balance, as well as an estimate of how -
mugch of each category of funds is reserved for future efforts. As of 7/1/11, $ 1,060,004 of our funds are not
statutorily reserved, but we plan to spend $ 315,155 of these funds in FY 11-12 and project to have $ 744,849
on 6/30/12. At this point these funds have been identified for contingency. The bottom table suggests possible
uses. It is important to note that these funds allow us to be most effective at leveraging other funds and
responding to unforeseen business changes.

- |Projecied [Planaed use| BA0F1E | e
Source of Fund Balance F/ifah! of FB in End HNotes
) Beg Bal 201112 Balence

Funds Statutorially Reserved

:General State awarded funds reserved for DD seivices such as ease management or

{1671 Developmentally Disabled State Funds E5E47 ¢ o B5.547 Hor speciic clients
16-72,73,75,79 Qregon Health Plan Funds 1,158,443 L0740 §DHP Tunds received fur serving mental health needs of Yemhit OHP cfisnts

i Beneral State swarded funds reserved for MH setvices such as crisis and indigent |

V Slalﬂ awarded funds reserved for high Tisk MH chients ta be served in non hospitat
selkng .

lefundsin SE 20,2226 and GeroPsyech

L JE72AdutMH Oupgtient f 0 possyy

16.72 Adult MH Initiative services

. BLT18)
7S Mental Heatth State Funds | - 78 ;
JRTE

MH doftats slready comimitted for Lise with consumer run services .

 1B73PicjectAble

MH doliars akready committed for use for Oregon Family Support Netwolk

o ETRFY Orecon Famly SuppmtNewerk 11 (38000
‘ 10 793 {Funds awasided to HHS o managa for regional pastriers for hosgstal dsvarsn:n

: 18-72 Regional Acule ona time

PSR

16-76 L0 TCE reserve L [20.654]: ly General Fund and Fees generaled fot TCE
iGN 410 : {9,418} ohot and Drvn dedicated outpatient kunds.
Resorved sub total 2054614 ¢ {317,596 1.737.034 ¢ .

Local Fund Balance - Limited Use S ;
o {PH stalf time to coordinals local volunteer efforts and comlinug soordination and
. ilanning efforts
Suppoits Healthy Sian costs beynid State funded level, but necessary o meet State
[H]

1670 Dental

“H

1872 BIA mateh “FederalGrant applicalion pening approval requies ths ogalmetch
. : ; : :HHE has historically fuaded large purcheses as copy machines, priftéls, faciity

HHS Capita], Equipment Replacement R By et [such as paanic buttons and secire email] with fund balance

HHE bifling sofiware: Electienic Medical Revord : " TContinued mavement toward EMR and CCHIT setification for Medicale ahd Med'\::ad

softwaie Jicenses, server . (8r.060); icomplance . N

Limited Use sub tota] 1,060,004 {315,155] 744,848
TOTALL 3,114,618 {632.735)| 2,481 883

Other Conﬁngenmes or Considerations for Long Term Use of Fund Balance

Ihtantiad to off.set mid- -pear teductions and unffeseen hudget dificuliss and

{eonomic downtuns, Y 30-T1. For exsmple, biought cuts to Develpmental

i Digabilities, Adult Mental Health, and Family & Youth programs mid-yaar that requited &
; ire-allocation of matehing funds and use of fund balance - not all of which was

. Flexible Reserve : 1369,849); dedicated.

Contingeney Sub totaf : : 7448498

1 Bt T 1)




